

LRCiv 3.8

ASSIGNMENT OF CASES; CIVIL

(a) **Assignment of Civil Cases.** Within each division, the civil cases, when filed, shall be assigned among the Judges of the division by the Clerk (or by a deputy designated by the Clerk) by automated random selection and in a manner so that neither the Clerk nor any parties or their attorneys shall be able to make a deliberate choice of a particular Judge for a particular case. The cases so assigned shall remain with the Judge to whom assigned unless otherwise ordered by the Court. Unless otherwise ordered by the Court, the Clerk shall assign each civil case to a District Judge or a Magistrate Judge by automated random selection, except that when preliminary injunctive relief is requested by a motion that is filed separately from the complaint the Clerk shall assign the case to a District Judge. In the event the action is assigned to a Magistrate Judge, each party shall execute and file within ~~20~~ fourteen (14) days of its appearance either a written consent to the exercise of authority by the Magistrate Judge under 28 U.S.C. § 636(c), or a written election to have the action reassigned to a District Judge.

LRCiv 5.5

ELECTRONIC FILING

(b) **Filing of Documents Electronically.** The Court will accept for filing documents submitted, signed or verified by electronic means consistent with these rules and the Administrative Manual. Filing of documents electronically in compliance with these rules and the Administrative Manual will constitute filing with the Court for purposes of Rule ~~5(e)~~ 5(d)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

(h) **Service of Electronic Filings.** Registration as an ECF user constitutes consent to the electronic service of all documents through the Court's transmission facilities for purposes of Rule ~~5(b)(2)(D)~~ 5(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. Transmission of the Notice of Electronic Filing to a Registered User's e-mail address constitutes service of the hyperlinked document(s). Only the Notice of Electronic Filing, generated and transmitted by the ECF system, is sufficient to constitute electronic service of an electronically filed document. Non-registered users shall be provided notice of the filing by other means in accordance with the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

LRCiv 5.6

SEALING OF COURT RECORDS IN CIVIL ACTIONS

(d) **Filing a Document Designated Confidential by Another Party.** Unless otherwise ordered by the Court, if a party wishes to file a document that has been designated as confidential by another party pursuant to a protective order or confidentiality agreement, or if a party wishes to refer in a memorandum or other filing to information so designated by another party, the submitting party must confer with the designating party about the need to file the document (or proposed filing) under seal and whether the parties can agree on a stipulation seeking to have the document (or proposed filing) filed under seal. If the parties are unable to agree on these issues, the submitting party must lodge the document (or proposed filing) under seal and file and serve a notice of lodging summarizing the parties' dispute and setting forth the submitting party's position, accompanied by a certification that the parties have conferred in good faith and were unable to agree about whether the document (or proposed filing) should be filed under seal. Within ~~ten (10)~~ fourteen (14) days after service of the notice, the designating party must file and serve either a notice withdrawing the confidentiality designation or a motion to seal and a supporting memorandum that sets forth the facts and legal authority justifying the filing of the document (or proposed filing) under seal. If the designating party seeks to have the document (or proposed filing) filed under seal, the motion must append (as a separate attachment) a proposed order granting the motion to

seal. No response to the motion may be filed. If the designating party does not file a motion or notice as required by this subsection, the Court may enter an order making the document (or proposed filing) part of the public record.

(e) **Denial of Request to File a Document Under Seal.** If a request to file under seal is denied in part or in full, the lodged document will not be filed. If the request is denied in full, the submitting party may, within ~~three (3)~~ five (5) days of the entry of the order denying the request, re-submit the document for filing in the public record. If the request is denied in part and granted in part, the party may resubmit the document in a manner that conforms to the Court's order and this Rule.

III. Pleadings and Motions

F.R.Civ.P. 7. Pleadings Allowed; Form of Motions

LRCiv 7.1

FORMS OF PAPERS

(b) Pleadings and Other Papers.

(3) Proposed orders prepared for the signature of a United States District Judge or a Magistrate Judge must be prepared on a separate document containing the heading data required by subparagraphs (a) (2) and (3) above as appropriate, and must not be included as an integral part of stipulations, motions, or other pleadings. The proposed order must not contain any information identifying the party submitting the order and must not incorporate by reference, but rather must set forth the relief requested or the terms of the parties' stipulation. Proposed orders submitted electronically must not contain a date or signature block. All other proposed orders must contain the following uniform signature block (Magistrate Judges should be adapted accordingly):

DATED this _____ day of _____, 20____.

(Judge's Name)

United States District Judge

LRCiv 7.2

MOTIONS³

(c) **Responsive Memorandum.** The opposing party shall, unless otherwise ordered by the Court and except as otherwise provided by Rule 56 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and Rules 12.1, 54.2(b), and 56.1, Local Rules of Civil Procedure, have ~~ten (10)~~ fourteen (14) days after service in a civil or criminal case within which to serve and file a responsive memorandum.

(d) **Reply Memorandum.** The moving party, unless otherwise ordered by the Court, shall have ~~five (5)~~ seven (7) days after service of the responsive memorandum to file a reply memorandum if that party so desires.

(g) **Motions for Reconsideration.**

(2) Procedure. No response to a motion for reconsideration and no reply to the response may be filed unless ordered by the Court, but no motion for reconsideration may be granted unless the Court provides an opportunity for response. Absent good cause shown, any motion for reconsideration shall be filed no later than ~~ten (10)~~ fourteen (14) days after the date of the filing of the Order that is the subject of the motion.

³ The time periods prescribed in the Local Rules are to be computed in accordance with Rule 6, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

(k) **Motions to Compel.** With regard to motions to compel discovery brought pursuant to Rule 37(a)~~(2)~~(3)(B) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, see Rule 37.1, Local Rules of Civil Procedure.

(m) **Motions to Strike.**

(1) Generally. Unless made at trial, a motion to strike may be filed only if it is authorized by statute or rule, such as Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 12(f), 26(g)(2) or ~~37(b)(2)(C)~~ 37(b)(2)(A)(iii), or if it seeks to strike any part of a filing or submission on the ground that it is prohibited (or not authorized) by a statute, rule, or court order.

LRCiv 15.1

MOTIONS AND STIPULATIONS FOR LEAVE TO AMEND PLEADINGS

~~(a) **Form; Attachments.** A party who moves for leave to amend a pleading, or who seeks to amend a pleading by stipulation and order, must attach a copy of the proposed amended pleading as an exhibit to the motion or stipulation, which must~~shall~~ indicate in what respect it differs from the pleading which it amends, by bracketing or striking through the text to be deleted and underlining the text to be added. The proposed amended pleading is not to incorporate by reference any part of the preceding pleading, including exhibits. If a motion or stipulation for leave to amend is granted, the party whose pleading was amended must file and serve the amended pleading on all parties under Rule 5 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure within fourteen (14) days of the filing of the order granting leave to amend, unless the Court orders otherwise.~~

~~(b) *Lodging of Original Proposed Amendments.* A party who moves for leave to amend a pleading, or who otherwise seeks to amend a pleading by leave of court including by stipulation and order, must lodge with the Clerk of Court an original of the proposed amended pleading. The original must not be physically attached or made an exhibit to a motion to amend, a stipulation to amend, or any other pleading and must contain the original signature of the attorney or unrepresented party proposing the amendment. The amended pleading is not to incorporate by reference any part of the proceeding pleading, including exhibits.~~

~~(c) *Effective Date of Filing Amendments; Service.* The entry of the order granting leave to amend the pleading constitutes the filing date of the amended pleading and the~~

~~Clerk of Court shall file the lodged pleading once the order is entered. The filing date of the amended pleading always constitutes the act from which the time for service begins to run. Unless otherwise ordered by the Court, or when the amendment adds a new party, the party who amended shall serve the amended pleading within ten (10) days of the filing date of such pleading and file a certificate of service.~~

LRCiv 37.1

MOTIONS TO COMPEL

(a) When a motion for an order compelling discovery is brought pursuant to Rule 37(a) ~~(2)~~ (3)(B) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the moving party shall set forth, separately from a memorandum of law, the following in separate, distinct, numbered paragraphs:

(1) the question propounded, the interrogatory submitted, the designation requested or the inspection requested;

(2) the answer, designation or response received; and

(3) the reason(s) why said answer, designation or response is deficient.

(b) The foregoing requirement shall not apply where there has been a complete and total failure to respond to a discovery request or set of discovery requests.

LRCiv 40.2

CONTINUANCES AND NOTICE OF SETTLEMENT

(c) **Payment of Jury Fees.** In the case of a civil jury trial where notice is not given in writing to the Clerk ~~three~~ ~~(3)~~ five (5) days before the trial is to begin that the case has been settled or otherwise disposed of, the Court may require the payment of one (1) days' jury fees by the party or parties responsible for the failure to give notice.

LRCiv 42.1

RELATED CASES; CONSOLIDATION; SERVICE; ASSIGNMENT

(a) **Related Cases.** ~~(1) Any party may file a motion to transfer the case or cases involved to a single Judge~~ ~~W~~ whenever two or more cases are pending before different Judges and any party believes that such cases: ~~(A1)~~ arise from substantially the same transaction or event; ~~(B2)~~ involve substantially the same parties or property; ~~(C3)~~ involve the same patent, trademark, or copyright; ~~(D4)~~ call~~s~~ for determination of substantially the same questions of law; or ~~(E5)~~ for any other reason would entail substantial duplication of labor if heard by different Judges, ~~any party may file a motion to transfer the case or cases involved to a single Judge.~~ The motion shall be filed in the case with the lowest case number assigned to a District Judge who shall hear and decide the motion. If the cases are assigned to only Magistrate Judges, a motion to transfer shall be heard by the Magistrate Judge assigned to the lowest case number. ~~and shall be heard by the Judge assigned to that case.~~ The caption of the motion to transfer shall list the case number of that case, followed by a complete listing of the case numbers of all the cases to be considered for reassignment. In addition, a notice of filing motion to transfer, with a copy of the motion attached, shall be filed in each case to be considered for reassignment.

~~(2b)~~ **Consolidation.** A motion to consolidate pursuant to Rule 42(a), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, shall contain the captions of all the cases sought to be consolidated, be filed in each case and shall be heard by the District Judge assigned the lowest case number.

~~(3c)~~ **Service.** Service of any motion to transfer filed

under subparagraph (a) ~~(1)~~ or service of any motion to consolidate filed under subparagraph (a) ~~(2)~~ shall be made upon all parties and assigned Judges in such cases.

(~~4~~d) **Assignment.** In determining the Judge to whom the case or cases will be assigned pursuant to subparagraphs (a) ~~(1)~~ or ~~(a) (2) (b)~~ above, the following factors may be considered: (~~A~~1) whether substantive matters have been considered in a case; (~~B~~2) which Judge has the most familiarity with the issues involved in the cases; (~~C~~3) whether a case is reasonably viewed as the lead or principal case; or (~~D~~4) any other factor serving the interest of judicial economy.

LRCiv 43.1

CONDUCT IN COURTROOM AND ENVIRONS

(b) Computers, Cellular Phones, and Other Equipment.

Unless otherwise ordered by the Court, laptop computers, personal digital assistants (PDAs), and pagers may be used in the courtroom provided they emit no sound, and are not disruptive to the proceedings. Unless otherwise ordered by the Court, Internet access is permitted. Cellular phones are prohibited from use in the courtroom. However, unless otherwise ordered by the Court, cellular phones may be utilized in the hallways, lobbies, and other areas of the environs. Any device which has the potential to emit sound or be disruptive to Court proceedings must be turned off or set on silent mode in the courtroom. The use of this equipment is permissible within a judge's chambers at the discretion of the judge. The use of any device described in this section or any other device for the purposes described in this Local Rule subsection (a)(1) is strictly prohibited.

Findings

LRCiv 52.1

FINDINGS

In all actions in which findings are required, the prevailing party shall, unless the Court otherwise directs, prepare a draft of the findings and conclusions of law within ~~five (5)~~ seven (7) days after the rendition of the decision of the Court if the decision was in the presence of counsel, and otherwise within ~~five (5)~~ seven (7) days after notice of the decision. The draft of the findings and conclusions of law shall be filed with the Clerk and served upon the adverse party. The adverse party shall within ~~five (5)~~ seven (7) days thereafter file with the Clerk, and serve upon his or her adversary, such proposed objections, amendments, or additions to the findings as he may desire. The findings shall thereafter be deemed submitted and shall be settled by the Court and shall then be signed and filed. No judgments shall be entered in actions in which findings of fact and conclusions of law are required until the findings and conclusions have been settled and filed. A failure to file proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law and to take the necessary steps to procure the settlement thereof may be grounds for dismissal of the action for want of prosecution or for granting judgment against either party.

F.R.Civ.P. 53. Masters

LRCiv 53.1

DUTIES OF MAGISTRATE JUDGES; SPECIAL MASTER

~~(a)~~ Subject to the Constitution and laws of the United States, ~~the full-time~~ Magistrate Judges in the District of Arizona ~~may shall perform the following duties:~~

~~(1)~~ ~~§~~ serve as a Special Master in appropriate civil cases in accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 636 (b) (2) and Rule 53 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. ~~Upon the consent of the parties,~~ A Magistrate Judge may be designated by a District Judge to serve as a Special Master in any civil case ~~notwithstanding the limitations of~~ in accordance with Rule 53~~(b)~~ of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

REVIEW OF SPECIAL MASTER REPORTS (28 U.S.C. § 636(b)(2)(A))

Any party may seek review of, or action on, a special master report filed by a Magistrate Judge in accordance with the provisions of Rule ~~53(e)~~ 53(f) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

VII. Judgments

F.R.Civ.P. 54. Judgments; Costs

LRCiv 54.1

COSTS: SECURITY FOR, TAXATION, PAYMENT

(a) **Procedure for Filing Bill of Costs.** Costs shall be taxed as provided in Rule 54(d), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. A party entitled to costs shall, within ~~ten (10)~~ fourteen (14) days after the entry of final judgment, unless time is extended under Rule 6(b), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, file with the Clerk of Court and serve upon all parties, a bill of costs on a form provided by the Clerk. This bill of costs shall include a memorandum of the costs and necessary disbursements, so itemized that the nature of each can be readily understood, and, where available, documentation of requested costs in all categories must be attached. The bill of costs shall be verified by a person acquainted therewith.

(b) **Objections, Appearance Not Required.** Within ~~ten (10)~~ fourteen (14) days after service of the bill of costs, a party objecting to any cost item may file with the Clerk and serve itemized objections in writing, presenting any affidavits or other evidence he or she has in connection with the costs and the grounds for the objection. Once the ~~ten (10)~~ fourteen (14) day objection period has expired, the Clerk shall have thirty (30) days to tax the costs and allow such items as are properly allowable. In exceptional cases a party may request, by written motion, that a taxation hearing with parties present be held before the Clerk. The Clerk, on his or her own motion, may also order the parties to appear for a taxation hearing. In the absence of objection, any item listed may be taxed in the discretion of the Clerk. The Clerk shall

thereupon docket and include the costs in the judgment. Notice of the Clerk's taxation shall be given by mailing a copy of the taxation order to all parties in accordance with Rule 5, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The taxation of costs thus made shall be final unless modified on review by the Court on motion served within ~~five (5)~~ seven (7) days thereafter, pursuant to Rule 54(d), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

* * *

LRCiv 54.2

ATTORNEYS' FEES AND RELATED NON-TAXABLE EXPENSES

(b) **Time for Filing.** Where recovery of attorneys' fees and related non-taxable expenses are sought against the United States, the motion and supporting memorandum of points and authorities must be filed in accordance with the time limits set forth in Rule 54(d)(2)(B), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and 28 U.S.C. § 2412(d)(1)(B). In all other cases, this paragraph (b) shall apply.

(3) Responsive and Reply Memoranda. Unless otherwise ordered by the court, the opposing party may file and serve a responsive memorandum to the motion for award of attorneys' fees and related non-taxable expenses, or any portion thereof, within fifteen (15) days after service of the memorandum in support. Thereafter, the moving party, unless otherwise ordered by the court, shall have ~~ten (10)~~ fourteen (14) days after service of the responsive memorandum to file a reply memorandum if that party so desires.

F.R.Civ.P. 56. Summary Judgment

LRCiv 56.1

MOTIONS FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

(d) Notwithstanding the provisions of Rule 7.2(c), (d), and (f), Local Rules of Civil Procedure, the opposing party shall, unless otherwise ordered by the Court, have thirty (30) days after service within which to serve and file a responsive memorandum in opposition; the moving party, unless otherwise ordered by the Court, shall have fifteen (15) days after service of the responsive memorandum to file a reply memorandum. If oral argument is scheduled pursuant to Rule 7.2(f), Local Rules of Civil Procedure, the time of hearing shall be set so as to give each party sufficient time to comply with these Local Rules and to allow the Court at least ~~ten (10)~~ fourteen (14) days additional time prior to the hearing.

F.R.Civ.P. 72. Magistrate Judges; Pretrial Orders

LRCiv 72.1

ASSIGNMENT OF MATTERS TO MAGISTRATE JUDGES

(a) **Civil Cases.** Upon the order of a District Judge, a civil case shall be referred by the Clerk of the Court to a Magistrate Judge by automated random selection for the conduct of such pretrial conferences as are necessary, and for the hearing and determination of any or all pretrial matters in accordance with the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 636 (b) (1). If the referral is for a determination of one of the eight categories of dispositive motions set forth in 28 U.S.C. § 636 (b) (1) or is one for which a Magistrate Judge is prohibited from determining by the Constitution or laws of the United States, the Magistrate Judge shall file a written report and recommendation for final disposition by the referring District Judge.

(b) **Supplementary Proceedings.** The Clerk of the Court shall refer to a Magistrate Judge, in addition to the assignment made to a District Judge, any supplementary proceedings pursuant to Rule 69, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and post-judgment proceedings, such as garnishments and judgment-debtor examinations, unless: (1) the matter has already been referred by a District Judge to a Magistrate Judge pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 636(b) (3), or (2) the matter has been assigned to a Magistrate Judge for final determination pursuant to the express written consent of the parties according to 28 U.S.C. § 636(c).

(c) **Habeas Corpus, Other Post Conviction Petitions, and Prisoner and certain other Civil Rights Complaints.** All petitions for writs of habeas corpus, applications for post trial relief made by individuals convicted of criminal

offenses, civil rights complaints by state or federal prisoners challenging conditions of their confinement, and all other civil actions to which a District Judge has been assigned shall also be referred by the Clerk of the Court to a Magistrate Judge according to Local Rules of Civil Procedure, Rules 3.4(b), 3.5(c), or by automated random selection. The referred Magistrate Judge shall proceed in accordance with the Rules Governing Section 2254 Cases In The United States District Courts, or the Rules Governing Section 2255 Proceedings For The United States District Courts, as the case may be, and with 28 U.S.C. § 636 (b) (1) (A) and (B).

(d) **Part-Time Magistrate Judges.** The only limitations on the duties and responsibilities delegated to and performed by a part-time Magistrate Judge are those limitations specifically set forth in 28 U.S.C. § 636 or other applicable statute or General Order.

LRCiv 77.1

LOCATIONS; HOURS OF CLERK'S OFFICES

(d) **Hours of Clerk's Offices.** The offices of the Clerk shall be open during regular business hours, as designated and posted by the Clerk of Court, on each day except Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays enumerated in ~~Fed.R.Civ.P. 77(c)~~ Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 6(a)(4) and 77(c)(1), when the offices are closed unless otherwise ordered by the Court.

LRCiv 83.2

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINE

(d) **Notice to Clients.** Within ~~five (5)~~ seven (7) days of the date of the sending of a notice of suspension or a notice of other action by the Court, the attorney must file in each action pending before this Court in which the attorney currently is counsel of record a notice (1) setting forth the client's full name and last known mailing address and telephone number and (2) certifying that:

(1) the attorney has notified the attorney's client involved in the action in writing of (A) the specific limitations or conditions the Court has imposed upon the attorney, including suspension or disbarment; (B) the status of the action, including the dates and times of any hearings or trial settings, existing deadlines set forth in Court Orders and the possibility of sanctions for failure to comply with those deadlines; and (C) if applicable, the attorney's inability to provide continuing representation in the action because the attorney has been suspended or disbarred; or

(2) the attorney's client cannot be located or for whatever other reason cannot be provided notice as required by this Local Rule.

LRCiv 83.3

APPEARANCE BY ATTORNEY OR PARTY; NAME AND ADDRESS CHANGES;
CONTROL OF CAUSE

(d) **Notice of Name and Address Changes.** An attorney or unrepresented party must file a notice of a name or address change, and an attorney must also file a notice of a change of firm name or e-mail address. The notice must be filed no later than ~~10~~ fourteen (14) days before the effective date of the change, except that an unrepresented party who is incarcerated must submit a notice within ~~5~~ seven (7) days after the effective date of the change. A separate notice must be filed in each active case.

LRCiv 83.9

AMENDMENT OF THE RULES OF PRACTICE

(a) Rules of Practice Advisory Committee.

(1) Appointment. The Chief Judge shall appoint members of a Rules of Practice Advisory Committee (Committee) to serve such terms as the Chief Judge designates. The Chief Judge will appoint a District Judge as the Chair of the Committee (Chair).

(2) Responsibilities. The Committee shall make reports and recommendations to the Court regarding the following matters:

(~~i~~A) The consistency of the Rules of Practice (Local Rules) with the United States Constitution, Acts of Congress, the Federal Rules and General Orders of the Court; and

(~~i~~B) Proposed amendments to the Local Rules.

LRCrim 10.2

TRUE NAME TO BE GIVEN

When the defendant receives an initial appearance or is arraigned, the defendant shall be informed that if the name by which he or she is charged is not his or her true name, the defendant must then declare his or her true name or be proceeded against by the name in the charge. If the defendant alleges that another name is his or her true name, the Court shall direct its entry in the minutes of the arraignment and the subsequent proceedings on the charge may be had against the defendant by that name, referring also to the name by which the defendant was charged.

LRCrim 12.2

EXCLUDABLE TIME AND MOTIONS - SPEEDY TRIAL ACT

(a) **Content of Motions.** Any motion submitted for filing in a criminal case, other than in a petty offense case, must contain a statement as follows:

(b) **Content of Orders.** Any written order prepared for signature by a United States District Judge or United States Magistrate Judge, other than in a petty offense case, must contain a final paragraph or statement as follows:

(c) **Content of Minute Entries.** All minute orders relating to disposition of criminal motions ruled upon in open court, other than in a petty offense case, shall contain a statement comparable to that outlined in (b) above.

Title VII. Post-Conviction Procedures
F.R.Crim.P. 32. Sentencing and Judgment
~~**(NO LOCAL RULE)**~~

LR crim 32.1

SENTENCING - PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATIONS

(a) **Presentence Investigation.** Upon conviction by trial or plea, a court shall order that defendant not leave the District of Arizona without prior authorization until he or she has been interviewed by a Probation Officer.

(b) **Appeals.** In all cases where a defendant has been sentenced to a period of probation, and files a notice of appeal, the period of probation and supervision shall begin on the date of judgment, notwithstanding the pendency of the appeal.

(c) **Petition for Disclosure of Presentence or Probation Records.** No confidential records of this Court maintained by the Probation Office, including presentence and probation supervision records, shall be sought by any applicant except pursuant to the provisions under General Order 05-12, Testimony of Judiciary Personnel and Production of Judiciary Records in Legal Proceedings

(d) **Preparation and Use of Presentence Reports .**

(1) Plea agreements, whether a public record or sealed by order of the Court, shall be made available to the Probation Office for the District of Arizona, for the limited use of the Probation Officer preparing the presentence report and exercising probation supervision.

(2) Unless the Court directs otherwise, the probation officer shall disclose the sentencing recommendation as part of the initial and final presentence reports. The Probation Office shall disclose the initial and final presentence reports to the defendant's attorney or to the defendant, if

pro per, and to the United States Attorney. The defendant's attorney may provide a copy to the defendant.

(3) The Probation Office, after sentencing, will retain the original copy of the presentence report on behalf of the Clerk of the Court. When a request is made to the Clerk's Office to view a copy of the presentence report, the request shall be referred to the Probation Office. If appropriate, the Probation Office shall prepare for the requestor a copy of the presentence report exclusive of the Rule 32(b)(3), Fed.R.Crim.P., information.

(4) Nothing in this Local Rule shall prohibit the Probation Office from disclosing the presentence report to an Arizona Superior Court Probation Office if that office agrees in writing, on a form approved by the Chief Judge of this Court, to maintain confidentiality of matters so specified by this Court.

**F.R.Crim.P. 32.1. Revoking or Modifying Probation or
Supervised Release**

LRCrim 32.1.1

(NO LOCAL RULE)

~~PROBATION -- PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATIONS~~

~~(a) **Probation**. In criminal cases where the defendants are placed on probation, such defendants shall be subject to the supervision of the Probation Office of the Court, unless otherwise ordered, and shall comply with such reasonable rules and regulations as the Probation Officer shall prescribe, subject to modifications by the Court for cause shown.~~

~~(b) **Presentence Investigation**. Upon conviction by trial or plea, a defendant shall not leave the District of Arizona until he or she has been interviewed by a Probation Officer, unless otherwise ordered by the Court.~~

~~(c) **Appeals**. In all cases where a defendant has been sentenced to a period of probation, and files a notice of appeal, the period of probation and supervision shall begin on the date of judgment, notwithstanding the pendency of the appeal.~~

~~(d) **Petition for Disclosure of Presentence or Probation Records**.~~

~~(1) No confidential records of this Court maintained by the Probation Office, including presentence and probation supervision records, shall be sought by any applicant except by written petition to this Court establishing with particularity the need for specific information in the records.~~

~~(2) When a demand for disclosure of presentence and probation records is made, by way of subpoena or other judicial process, to a Probation Officer of the Court, the Probation Officer may file a petition seeking instruction from~~

~~the Court with respect to responding to the subpoena.~~

~~(3) Whenever a Probation Officer is subpoenaed for such records, he or she shall petition this Court in writing for authority to release documentary records or produce testimony with respect to such confidential Court information. In either event, no disclosures shall be made except upon an order issued by this Court.~~

~~(e) **Preparation and Use of Presentence Reports**.~~

~~(1) Plea agreements, whether a public record or sealed by order of the Court, shall be made available to the Probation Office for the District of Arizona, for the limited use of the Probation Officer preparing the presentence report and exercising probation supervision.~~

~~(2) The initial disclosure of the presentence report to counsel and pro se defendant under Rule 32(e) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure must not include the Probation Officer's recommendation on the sentence. The subsequent submission of the presentence report to the Court and the parties under Rule 32(g) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure must include the Probation Officer's recommendation on the sentence, unless the Court directs the Probation Officer not to disclose the recommendation.~~

~~(3) When a copy of a presentence report is released, the probation Office will advise the defendant's counsel and the U.S. Attorney by cover letter or form letter that (A) the report is not to be copied, (B) the report is not a public record, and (C) that the content may not be disclosed to unauthorized individuals. A receipt or charge-out system will be utilized by the Probation Office to monitor distribution and location of the reports.~~

~~(4) If the presentence report contains any information or material that contains diagnostic opinions which might seriously disrupt a program of rehabilitation;~~

~~source of information obtained upon a promise of confidentiality; or any other information which, if disclosed, might result in harm, physical or otherwise, to the defendant or other person; that information will be included in an addendum or attachment and not distributed to the defendant's counsel or the U.S. Attorney, and handled as provided in Rule 32(c)(3)(A) and 32(b)(5) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure.~~

~~(5) The Probation Office, after sentencing, will retain the original copy of the presentence report on behalf of the Clerk of the Court. When a request is made to the Clerk's Office to view a copy of the presentence report, the request shall be referred to the Probation Office, which shall take care of the matter. If appropriate, the Probation Office shall prepare for the requestor of a copy of the presentence report exclusive of Rule 32(b)(5), Fed.R.Crim.P., information and/or other information which, if disclosed, might result in harm, physical or otherwise, to the defendant or other person, if latter information is not specifically relied upon by the Court in sentencing.~~

~~(6) The Probation Office will send to the U.S. Sentencing Commission a complete final draft presentence report, sentencing guideline worksheets, plea agreement (if written), judgment and commitment order, and the Court's written reasons for imposing sentence.~~

~~(7) Nothing in this Local Rule shall prohibit the Probation Office from disclosing the presentence report to an Arizona Superior Court Probation Office if that office agrees in writing, on a form approved by the Chief Judge of this Court, to maintain confidentiality of matters so specified by this Court.~~

~~(f) **Release of Presentence Report to Parole Commission.** Any copy of defendant's presentence report which the Court~~

~~releases to the United States parole Commission, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 4205 (e), shall state thereon that:~~

~~(1) the presentence report is a confidential Court document;~~

~~(2) that the Court intends the report to remain confidential even though released to the Commission; and~~

~~(3) that the presentence report is merely loaned to the Commission in order for the Commission to serve its statutory functions and must be returned to the Court thereafter.~~

LRCrim 57.6

UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGES

(a) **Duties Prescribed.** All Magistrate Judges in the District of Arizona shall perform the duties prescribed by 28 U.S.C. § 636~~(a)~~. The only limitations on the duties and responsibilities delegated to and performed by a part-time Magistrate Judge are those limitations specifically set forth in 28 U.S.C. § 636 or other applicable statute or General Order.

LR crim 58.1

**ASSIGNMENT OF ~~CRIMINAL MATTERS~~ MISDEMEANORS TO MAGISTRATE
JUDGES**

~~(MISDEMEANORS)~~

~~(a) Criminal Cases.~~ All misdemeanor cases filed by indictment, complaint, or information shall be assigned to a ~~full-time~~ Magistrate Judge who shall proceed in accordance with 18 U.S.C. § 3401 and Rule 58 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. Misdemeanor cases filed by indictment or information shall be assigned to a ~~full-time~~ Magistrate Judge by automated random selection, with the exception of cases brought before the ~~full-time~~ Magistrate Judges sitting in Flagstaff and in Yuma, which shall be directly assigned such cases. All other misdemeanors, ~~except petty offense cases processed by the Central Violations Bureau,~~ shall be assigned to any Magistrate Judge designated by those rules to try misdemeanors. Any Magistrate Judge may act in the absence or unavailability of the assigned Magistrate Judge. In the case of a Class A misdemeanor, if the defendant does not waive trial, judgment, and sentencing before a District Judge of the District Court and does not consent to those proceedings before the Magistrate Judge, the case shall be promptly referred to the Clerk of Court for assignment to a District Judge and the defendant shall be directed to appear before the assigned District Judge.

LR crim 58.2

~~REVIEW AND APPEAL JUDGMENTS OF MAGISTRATE JUDGES~~
APPEAL FROM JUDGMENTS OF MAGISTRATE JUDGES IN MISDEMEANOR
CASES (18 U.S.C. § 3402)

~~(a) Appeal from Judgments in Misdemeanor Cases (18 U.S.C. § 3402).~~

~~(1)~~ (a) Notice of Appeal; Service. A defendant may appeal a judgment of conviction by a Magistrate Judge in a misdemeanor case by filing a notice of appeal with the Clerk of the Court within ~~ten (10)~~ fourteen (14) days after entry of the judgment, and by serving a copy of the notice upon the United States Attorney. The scope of appeal shall be the same as on an appeal from a judgment of the District Court to the Court of Appeals.

~~(2)~~ (b) Record on Appeal. The record on appeal to a District Judge shall consist of the original papers and exhibits filed with the Court and the transcript or tape recording of proceedings before the Magistrate Judge, if any.

~~(3)~~ (c) Opening Memorandum. The appellant shall, within thirty (30) days of the filing of the notice of appeal, file a typewritten memorandum with the Clerk of the Court. The memorandum shall include the following: ~~(A)~~ (1) A statement of the issues presented for review and a statement of ~~the case including a statement of~~ the nature of the case; ~~(B)~~ (2) the course of proceedings; and ~~(C)~~ (3) its disposition. There shall follow a statement of the facts relevant to the issues presented for review. The memorandum shall also include any argument which shall contain the contentions of the appellant with respect to the issues presented, and the reasons therefore, with citations to the authorities and statutes relied on. The argument shall be followed by a short

conclusion stating the precise relief sought. ~~The appellant shall serve a copy of the memorandum on the appellee.~~

~~(4)~~ (d) Answering Memorandum. The appellee shall file an answering memorandum within ~~twenty-one~~ (201) days of the filing and service of the appellant's memorandum. The memorandum shall follow a format similar to the appellant's memorandum, except that a statement of the issues presented for review, a statement of the case, and a conclusion shall be optional.

~~(5)~~ (e) Reply Memorandum. The appellant may file a reply memorandum within ~~ten~~ (10) ~~fourteen~~ (14) days of the date of service of the appellee's memorandum.

~~(6)~~ (f) Request for Oral Argument. ~~Upon the filing of the memorandum, the case will be deemed submitted for decision. Counsel may request oral argument, Either party may request oral argument by placing "Oral Argument Requested" immediately below the title of their memorandum. If oral argument is granted, notice shall be given in a manner directed by the Court. in writing, at the time their memoranda are filed, and the Court, in its discretion, may allow oral argument.~~

~~(7)~~ (g) Extension of Time Limits; Dismissal of Appeal. The Court may extend the time limits set in this Local Rule upon a showing of good cause made by the party requesting the extension. Such good cause may include reasonable delay in the preparation of any necessary transcript. If an appellant fails to file a memorandum within the time provided by this Local Rule, or an extension thereof, the Court may dismiss the appeal.

APPENDIX A. MOTIONS TIME CHART

CATEGORY ONE: ALL MOTIONS (except Motions for Summary Judgment and Motions to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction)

Authority: Rule 6 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Rules 7.2 and 7.3, Local Rules of Civil Procedure.

<u>Type of Motion</u>	<u>Response Time (to previous action)</u>	<u>Mailing Time</u>	<u>Notice Time</u>
Motion and Memorandum by Moving Party	(Initiating Action)	3 days	30 <u>37</u> days from filing of the Motion, then the following Monday
Responsive Memorandum	10 <u>14</u> days	3 days	
Reply Memorandum	5 <u>7</u> days	3 days	
Court Review Time	5 <u>7</u> days		

CATEGORY TWO: MOTIONS FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT and MOTIONS TO DISMISS FOR LACK OF JURISDICTION

Authority: Rule 6 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Rules 12.1 and 56.1, Local Rules of Civil Procedure.

<u>Type of Motion</u>	<u>Response Time (to previous action)</u>	<u>Mailing Time</u>	<u>Notice Time</u>
Motion, Memorandum, and Statement of Facts	(Initiating Action)	3 days	65 <u>68</u> days from filing of the Motion, then the following Monday
Responsive Memorandum	30 days	3 days	
Reply Memorandum	15 days	3 days	
Court Review Time	10 <u>14</u> days		